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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

EASTERN DISTRICT OF CALIEFORNIA

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, Case No. 2:09-CV-02445 JAM-EFB

Plaintiff,
ORDER DENYING SIERRA PACIFIC
INDUSTRIES’ MOTION FOR

)
)
)
)
V. )
) RECONSIDERATION OF DISCOVERY
) ORDER
SIERRA PACIFIC INDUSTRIES, et )
al., ‘ )
)
Defendants. )
)
T"his matter comes before the Court on Defendant Sierra
Pacific Industries’ (“SPI”) Motion for Reconsideration of

Discovery Order. (Doc. #107). Plaintiff United States of America

opposes the'mdtion (Doc. #111}.

I. FACTUAL AND PROCEDURAL BACKGROUND
On ARugust 10, 2010, the United States Forest Service
invited the public to a serigs of seven tours of a Eoreét
Service ﬁroject on the Plumas Naticnal Forest. Michaél Schaps

{“Schaps”), an associate attorney with Downey, Brand, counsel of

record for SPI, attended the public tour; along with other
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members of ‘the public. During the tour, Schaps communicated
with a number of Forest Service employees. At no time did
Schaps inform those employees that he was an attorney with the
law firm repreésenting SPI in this pending litigation.

Upon learning that Schaps attended the tour and asked
questions to Forest Service employees, the Upited States fiied a
Motion for Protectivé Order to Bar Improper Ex Parte Contacts
and Produce Evidence of Ex Parte Contracts; And Prohibit Use of
Evidence Obtained From Ex Parte Contacts (Doc. #68) before the
Honorable Edmund F. Brennan, Magistrate Judge. After extensive
briefing and a hearing, Magistrate Judge Brennan granted the
United States’ Motion for a Protective Order (Doc. #92). SPI
now asks this Court to reconsider and set aside Magistrate Judge
Brennan’s Order.

II. OPINTON

A. Legal Standard

28 U.S.C. § 636(b) and E.D. Cal. Local Rule 303 govern the
standard for a Motion for Reconsideration. The district court
“may reconsider any pretrial matter .. . . where it has been
shown that the magistrate judge’s order is clearly erroneous or
contrary to law.” 28 U.5.C. § 363(b)(i)(A); E.D. Cal. Local
Rule 303(f). The standard of review under § 636(b) {1) (A) is

highly deferential; see United States v. Abonce-Barrera, 257

F.3d 959, 968-69 (9th Cir., 2001), and does not permit the
reviewing court to substitute its own judgment for that of the

magistrate judge’s. Grimes v. City & County of San Francisco,

951 F.2d 236, 241 (9th Cir. 1991).
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B. Magistrate Judge’s Opinion

Magistrate Judge Brennan heid that Rule 2-100 of the Rules
of Professional Conduct of the State Bar of California
{(“California Rules”)-was violated by SPI's counsel’s
communication with Forest Service employees during the August
10, 20190 public tour.

1. Legal Standard

Rule 2-100 is a “no contact rule” which states that
“[w]lhile representing a client, a member shall not communicate-
‘directly or indirectly about the subject of the representation
with a party the member knows to be represented by another
lawyer in the matter, unless the member has the consent of the
other lawyer.”

Rule 2-100 contains a “public body”/“public officer”
exception to the no contact rule. Subsection (C) (1) states that
“[tlhis rule shall not prohibit commuhications with a public
officer, board, committee, or body.” According to a proposed,
but not formally adopted, opinion by the California state bar,
the public officer exception allows for contact with'a

represented party or empleyee if the communication is with:

a person to whom a communication would be
constitutionally protected by the First Amendment
right to petition the government. Such a person would
be one who, for example, has the authority to address,
clarify or alter governmental policy; to correct a
particular grievance; or to address or grant an
exemption from regulation.

Proposéd Formal Opinion Interim No. 98-0002. Thus, the Proposed
‘Formal Opinion focuses primarily on the level of the public

official’s authority to determine whether the public official

3
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exception applies. The public officials at issue in the
unadopted opinion were line police officers, and they were
determined not fo be of.the requisite level of authority to be
covered by the public officer exception. ‘

2. Magistrate Court’s Analysis

Magistrafg Judge Brennan found that the public officer
exception of subsection (C) (1) does not apply to the instant
case. “Schaps’ actions were not an exercise of a First
Amendment right to seek redress of é particular grievance, but
were rather an attempt to obtain evidence from these employees.”
Doc. #92 at 10, Schaps asked questions that went well beyond
attending a public information tour of a project site. ™“[T]he
faéts show and the court finds that he was attempting to obtain
information for use in the litigation that should have been
bursued through counsel and through the Federal Rules of Civil
Procedure governing discovery.” Id. Additionally, the court
found no evidence to support a conclusion that Schaps was
communicating with a policy-making official or personslwith
authority to change a policy or graﬁt some specific request for
redress that Schaps was presénting. Id. at 11.

Accordingly, the court found that the “public officer”
exception of Rule 2-100 (C) (1) has no application in this case
and granted the government’s motion for a protective order and
discovery sanctions. The court ordered SPI to identify all
federal employees contacted without knowledge of counsel for the
United'States in this matter to date, as well as;the dates and
circumstanées of each contact, and to produce originals and

copies of all recordings or documents relating to such
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communications.

C. Analysis

Magistrate Judge Brennan’s decision is not clearly erronecus
or contrary to law. Magistrate Judge Brennan found that the Forest
Service workers with whom SPI’s counsel communicated, do not have
decision—makiﬁg powers and have no authority to redress a
grievance. He also found that Schaps was not exercising his First
Amendment right to petition the government, but was instead engaged
in an attempt to discover and gather evidence and statements from
those employees for use in litigation. This Court finds that
Magistréte Judge Brennan’s factual findings and.applicaticn of the
law to be supported by the record and proper analysis. SPI argues
that Magistrate Judge Brennan failed to acknowledge and/or addréés
the actual text of Rule 2-100. fn particular, SPI argues that the
Foiest Service is a “public body” under 2-100{c) (1) and its
counsel’ s communications with any employee of the Forest Service 1is
permitted. This argument is without merit. Magistrate Judge
Brennan’s Order is fully consistent with the plain meaning of the
terms “public officer” and “public body.” These terms clearly
denote something more than any and all government employees.

This Court agrees with Magistrate Judge Brennan’s conclusion
that SPI’'s interpretation of Rule 2-100 would carry the “public-
official” exception to Rule 2-100 too far. If the State Bar had
intehded “public officer” or “public body” to mean all government
employees it would have said as much. The term “public body” does
not mean an individual and SPI’s argument that the Forest Service
is a “public bbdyh is irrelévant given the undisputed fact that all

of Schaps’ communications were with individual employees of the
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Forest Service. As the gove?nment argques, in common usage, “public
body” implies a multi-member group of individuals who derive
authority from their collegtive action, such as a cify council or
Congress. It is impossible fof this Court, as it was for |

Magistrate Judge Brennan, to reconcile SPI’s argument for

Mtunfettered access” to all government employees with the

unpublished state bar opinion. Holding otherwise would create the
unprecedented situation where attorneys for private litigants would
be permitted to speak to any government employee about any subject
for the.phrpose of obtaining information to be used against the
government in litigation.

Finally, this Court believes it is important to make clear
that it is troubled by SPI’s counsel’s behavior and decisions
with respect to this particular incident. Such conduct is out
éf the ordinary and the Court takes SPI's counsel at its wo?d
that it will not occur again. Local Rule 180 explicitly
prohibits “any conduct that degrades or impugns the integrity of

the Court or in any manner interferes with the administration of

justice.” E.D. Cal. Local Rule 180(e). The ABA Model Rules

forbid all “conduct involving dishonesty, fraud, deceit, or

i

misrepresentation.” Model Rule of Professional Conduct R.

8.4(c). These rules not only forbid affiﬁmative false

statements of fact, but misleading omissions.
“Misrepresentations can also occur by partiaily true but
misleading étatements or omissions that are the equivalent of
affirmativerstatements.” Model Rule of Professional Conduct
4.1, Comment 1. Here, Schaps was instructed to “aﬁtempt to étay

confidential” (Schaps’ Decl. (Doc. #107-1) ¢ 5). Such an
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instruction is difficult to reconcile with SPI’s position that
it had nothing to hide and aid nothing wrong. Instead of
identifying himself as counsel for SPI, Schaps stated only his
full name and that he was a membex of the public. Schaps’ Decl.
¢ 17. Even if Schaps did not make an affirmative false
statement, omitting that he represents SPI is an ethical lapse
because Schaps was not at the Forest Service tour simply as an
interested citizen, but as an attorney gathering evidence to be
used in litigation. While Schaps had aﬁ absolute right to
attend the tour, as a practicing attorney he is held to a higher
standard of ethical behavior than a general member cf- the
public, particularly when he is intimately involved in
litigation against the tour’s sponsor. Such is clearly the
intent behind Local Rule 180(e) and Rule 2-100, Zealous
advocacy overcame professicnal respdnsibility in this particular

instance. It should not, and, the Court is certain, will not

happen again.

IIT. ORDER
For the reascns set forth above,
SPI’s Motion for Reconsideration is DENIED. SPI shall
comply with Magistrate Judge Brennan’s Order {Doc. #92) within
seven (7) days from the date of this Order;

IT IS S50 ORDERED.

Dated: January 10, 2011

fHN A. MENDEZ, P{ JJ
ONITED STATES WASTRICT JODGE
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,
Plaintiff, No. CIY S-09-2445 KJM EFB
Vs,

SIERRA PACIFIC INDUSTRIES, et al.,

-
S
&S|
=3

Defendants.

On July 19, 2011, the United States filed a motion to find counsel for Sierra Pacific
Industries in contempt. Dekt. No. 242, The motion is predicated on alleged intentional

violations of the court’s carlier orders prohibiting unauthorized, ex parte contacts with a

represented party. The undersigned held a hearing on the motion on September 7, 2011. For the

reasons explained below, the court denies the motion to find counsel in contempt, but finds that
the conduct of Sierra Pacific’s counsel, which is addressed herein, violated California Rule of

Professional Conduct 2-100.

1. Background
A. This Court’s Previous Order

On November 16, 2010, this court found that one of Sierra Pacific’s attorneys had

violated Rule 2-100 (the no-contact rule) by communicating directly with employees of the

l.
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United States Forest Service about the subject matter of this litigation without the consent of
attorneys for the United States. Dckt. No. 92 at 8-12. The court ordered Sierra Pacific to
“identify all federal employees contacted without the knowledge of counsel for the United States
in this matter to date.” Id. at 12. The court’s order also contained the following Ianguage.: “the
court accepts SPI counsel’s representation that c.ounsel -will identify [their] relationship to Sietra
Pacific and involvement in this litigation before seeking out and interviewing particular
government employees about issues related to the Moonlight Fire. [And] . . . to notice the
deposition of control group federal employees if and when [counsel] wish to ask them
questions.” Id. at 12-13.

Sierra Pacific moved for reconsideration of this order. Dckt. No. 107. The thén—assigned
district judge denied that motion and affirmed the undersigned’s ruling that Sietra Pacific’s -
counsel had violated Rule 2-100, and further found that counsel’s conduct in failing to reveal to
the United States Forest Service employees that he represented Sierra Pacific was an ethical
lapse. See Order, Dckt. No. 124, at 5-7. Judge Mendez admonished, “[{]inally, this Court
believes it is important to make clear that it is troubled by SPI’s counsel’s behavior and
decisions with respect to this particular incident. Such conduct is out of the ordinary and the
Court takes SPI’s counsel at its word that it will not occur again.” Id. at 6.'

i b Cam :

Sierra Pacific has retained Steven Carman, a retired Special Agent with the Bureau of
Alcohol, Tobacco, Firearms and Explosives, as an expert in this case. Carman Decl., Dckt. No.
280-1at3, 1. On June 6, 2011, Carman fnet with counsel for Sierra Pacific, Downey Brand
attorneys Meghan Baker, Thomas Marrs, and William Warne. Id at 4. They discussed a former

forest service employee, Michael McNeil, who is suspected of setting a series of arson fires and

! Judge Mendez found that Sierra Pacific’s counsel had committed additional ethical
violations beyond the violations discussed in this court’s order. To the extent that the United
States seeks relief for violations of Judge Mendez’s order, it must seek relief before the district
judge assigned to this case. ' -
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who may have been in the area of the Moonlight Fire at the time it started. Id. at 3-4. The
attorneys told Carman that McNeil had been arrested by two ATF agents, Kar] Anglin and
Michael Hidalgo, in October 2007, “on charges related to terrorist threats and possibly an arson
in Southern California.” Id. at 4.

Carman told the attorneys that Anglin and Hidalgo had been his friends and associates for
many years, and suggested that he contact them to find out whether they had been involved in
invéstigating McNeil as a serial arsonist. d. at 5. The attorneys agreed that he could contact
Anglin and/or Hidalgo. Id. The attorneys told Carman that “they also wanted be to be clear in
any conversations that [Carman] was working for the defense of Sierra Pacific Industries on a
case brought against the company by the U.S. Attorney’s office.” Id. at 5-6.

Carman called Anglin on the same day. Id. at 6. Carman declares that he told Anglin:

... instead of working on the side of the federal government, I was working

opposite them, 1'said [ had actually been hired by a law firm that was

representing the largest logging company (and I may have mentioned that 1

thought it was the largest private land owner) in California. I told Karl that the

Civil Division of the U.S. Attorney’s office in Sacramento had filed a $1 billion

lawsuit against this company. . . . T explained that it was related to a large

wildland fire in Northern California that occurred on Labor Day, 2007. I do not

think I mentioned the names “Moonlight fire” or “Sierra Pacific Industries”

because with Karl being in Los Angeles and not working directly in Northern

California, I did not think either name would mean a thing to him. [ am sure

however that I did state T was opposite the U.S. government because I explained

to Karl that it felt really strange working against the U.S. Attorney’s office after

having worked with them for twenty years on fire cases.

Id. at 6-7. Carman declares that he asked Anglin for “public information” regarding McNeil. Id.
at 7.

In contrast, Anglin declares that Carman told him during this phone call “that he had
been retained as an expert by a law firm representing a ‘large client” involved in a civil lawsuit
involving a wild-land fire in Northern California.” Anglin Decl,, Dekt. No. 242-8 at 2. He
declares: “Based on Mr. Carman’s statements to me, [ never understood that the lawsuit in

which he was working was brought by the United States and was being civilly prosecuted by the

United States Attorney’s Office . . . it was my understanding based on the comments made by

3
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Mr. Carman that the lawsuit involved private parties and not the United States. Had I known
that.Mr. Carman was wor-king for a party against the United States, I would not have provided
him information . . ..” Anglin Supp. Decl., Dckt. No. 287-4 at 2.

Carman then wrote an email to Hidalgo. Carman Decl., Dckt. No. 280-1 at 8. The email
stated that Carman was “across from the Civil side of the US Attys office in Sacran@ente” but did
not mention the name of the client he was working for or the name of the fire. Id. Carman sent
the email to the wrong address, so it was not received by Hidalgo. /d. at 8-9. |

Carman declares that on June 9, 2011, Hidalgo called Carman, and Carman told Hidalgo
that he “was across from the U.S. Attorney in Sacramento in a civil case involving a big
wildland fire and that I was working for a company that was being sued by the government for
$1 billion . . . . Like my discussion with Karl Anglin, I do not specifically recall mentioning the
names ‘Sierra Pacific Industries,” ‘Downey Brand’ or the ‘Moonlight fire’ because again I did
not think any of those names would mean anything to Mike [Hidalgo].” Id

In contrast, Hidalgo declares that Carman told him “that he has been retained as an expert
by a law firm representing a client involve& in a civil lawsuit involving a wild land fire in
Northern California.” Hidalgo Decl., Dckt. No. 242-9 at 2. Hidalgo further declares: “At no
pbint did Mr. Carman ever tell me that the case in which he was retained was brought by the
United States, or that .thc client was Sierra Pacific Industries.” Id. He declares that: “Mr.
Carman never ‘expressly mentioned that {he] was working on a civil defense case ‘across from
the Civil side of the US Attys office in Sacramento’. . .. [He] certainly never explained that the
tawsuit was brought by the United States and was being civilly prosecuted by the United States
Atiorney’s Office, and I never understood that to be the case . . .. Had [ known that Mr. Carman |
was working for a party against the United States, I would not have provided him information.”

Dckt. No. 287-5 at 2.
| Carman asked Hidalgo questions about McNeil. Carman Decl., Dekt. No. 280-1 at 9-10.

i
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Hidélgo gave Carman infonnatién about his investigation of McNeil, Id. at 10. He stated that he
had not investigated McNeil for arson. Jd. According to Carman, Hidalgo “told me that if [
v}ouid like to come to Los Angeles, he would accompany me to the jail to inte;view McNeil.”
Id. Carman declares that Hidalgo “indicated that . . . I could ask questions regal'di_ng McNeil
related to the case I was working and fhat any evidence of criminal activity would be something
[Hidalgo] could follow up on or pass off to other agents.” Id. at 11. Carman told him that he
would have to get perx;lission from the attorneys he was working with, 1d. |
~ Carman declares that Hidalgo later told him that Hidalgo had contacted Diane Welton at

the United States Forest Service to get information about McNeil, d. Welton told Hidalgo that
she had been instructed not to talk about the Moonlight Fire because it was the subject of an
active case. Id. |

Carman further declares that the joint interview with McNeil did not happen because the
Downey Brand attorneys told Carman that “the U.S. Attorney’s office in Sacramento had alleged
that I may somehow have violated a protective order when I spoke with Karl Anglin and Mike
Hidalgo.” Id at 12. |

Carman declares that “I learned nothing from either man that related directly to the
Moonlight fire or my investigation of it . . . . All of the information about McNeil that I
addréssed in my repott came either from deposition testimony or the 2008 newspaper report
discussing McNei in light of the Euler prosecution in Southern California. In my conversations
with [Anglin} and [Hidalgo], I discovered that ATF had investigated McNeil for impersonating
an ATF official, not for setting numerous fires in Southern California.” Id. at 13.

C. Bundy

Scott Biddle, a current Bureau of Land Management employee and a former seasona}
Forest Service employee, posted a slideshow of photographs of the Moonlight Fire on YouTube
in 2008. Biddle Decl, Dckt. No. 287-2 at 2. Biddle was not a federal government employee at

the time of the contact. Opp’n to Mot. For Contempt, Dckt. No. 297 at 5.

3
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Dean Bundy, an expert witness retained by Sierra Pacific, emailed Biddle on March 9,
2011, asking for photographs and video of the fire. Biddle Decl., Dekt. No. 287-2 at 2. Bundy
told Biddle that he was investigating the Moénlight Fire, but did not say that the investigation
was for a lawsuit or that he was working for Sierra Pacific. /d. Biddle asked Bundy “what kind
of investigation are you dbing? Is this a private lawsuit, or a federal investigatibn?” Id. Bundy
1'ésponded, stating “this is a private lawsuit involving a number of parties related to that fire.”
Id. Bundy did not tell Biddle that he was working for Sietra Pacific, or that the lawsuit was
brought by the United States. Dckt. No. 287-2 at 2. Nor did Bundy ask whether Biddle was a
federal employee. Id. Biddle did not respond to the email. Baker Decl.,, Dekt. No. 297-1 at 5.

Meghan Baker, counsel for Sierra Pacific, declares that Bundy contacted Biddle without
hgr consent or knowledge. Id. at 4-5. After Bundy contacted Biddle, Bundy told Baker about
the contact. Id. at 5. She “did not perceive any issue with the communications . . . since Mr.
Biddle was a séasonal employee who no longer worked for the U.S. Forest Service™ but
reminded Bimdy ‘_‘not to contact any current U.S. Forest Service or government employees
without first obtaining permission from Downey Brand.” Id.

D Novik

On August 18, 2011, while this motion was pending before this court, Grant Novak, an
analyst at ICF International, a consulting firm retained by Sierra Pacific in this case, emailed
-Ryan Tompkins, a current Forest Service employee. Dckt. No. 287-3 at 2. Novak asked for
informaﬁdn regarding damages caused by the Moonlight Fire. Id. at 3. Tompkir_ls giid not
provide him with information. Zd. Counsel for Sierra Pacific did not work directly with Novak

and did not know of or approve the contact with Tompkins. Dckt. No. 297-1 at 5-6.

1t

? Baker declares that “T did not understand Mr. Biddle to be employed by the U.S, Forest
Service (or any other government agency) at the time that Mr. Bundy e-mailed him.” Dckt. No.

297-1at 7.
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11. Analysis
The United States argues that Carman’s contacts with the two ATF agents, Bundy’s

contact with a former Forest Service Employee, :and Novak’s contact with a current Forest
Service Emplosree, violate fhis couft’s November 2010 order and also independently violate
ethical rules. Dckt. No. 287 at 7.

Sierra Pacific argues that its attorneys’ and experts’ conduct does not violate this court’s
order because the order “presup;poses that counsel for Sierra Pacific can and will contact non-
party federal employees during this litigation” and that the conduct at issue does not violate Rule
2-100 because Carman did not contact a represented party about the subject of the
representation; Biddle was not a government employee at the time he was contacted by Bundy;
and Novak’s contact with Tompkins was not at the direction of or with the knowledge of
counsel. See Deckt. No. 280 at 11-20; Dekt. No. 297 at 5-8.

A. Violation of Rule 2-100

Sierra Pacific violated Rule 2-100 by allowing Carman to contact Anglin and Hidalgo.
As this court already explained to Sierra Pacific in its November 16, 2010 order, Rule 2-100 of
the California rules states: “[w]hile represehting a client, a member shall not communicate
directly or indirectly about the subject of the representation with a party the member knows to be
represented by another lawyer iIvl the matter, unless the member has the consent of the other
lawyer.”

. Sierra Pacific argues that Carman’s contacts with Anglin and Hidalgo did not violate
Rule 2-100 because the agents are not a “party” under the rule, and the commurnications were not

about the “subject of the representation.” Dckt. No. 280 at 16.7 For the purposes of Rule 2-100,

3 The United States points out that Sierra Pacific did not raise these arguments in prior
briefs regarding Michacl Schaps® communications with the United States Forest Service
employees. - See Dekt. No. 287 at 14. The United States argues that these arguments are barred
by the law of the case doctrine. Id. at 11. Because the arguments fail in any event, the court
does not address whether they are barred by the law of the case doctrine.

7
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a “party” is defined as “(1) An officer, director, or managing agent of a corporation or
association, and a partner or managing agent of a partnership; or (2) An association member or
an employee of an association, corporation, or partnership, if the subject of the communication is
any act or omission of such person in connection with the matter which méy be binding upon or
imputed to the orgé.nization for purposes of civil or criminal liability or whose statement may
constitute an admission on the part of the organization.” Rule 2-100(B). Here, Anglin and
Hidalgo fall under 2-100(B)(2)-they are Uni-ted States employees, and their statements might
constitute admissions on the part of the United Statos.

| Fed. R. Evid. 801(d){2) defines a party admission as “a statement made by the party’s
agent or servant concerning a matter within the scope of the agency or employment, made during
the existence of the relationship.” Carman attempted to elicit statements from Anglin and
Hidalgo about McNeil’s arrest and their investigation of him. He spoke to them while they were
United States employees about their investigation of McNeil. To the extent that they performed
such an investigation regarding McNeil, they did so in their official capacities. In addition, any
information that the agents had about McNeil, and relayed to Carman, was obtained in the scope
of their employment.
| Sierra Pacific argues that Anglin and Hidalgo’s statements do not constitute admissions
on the part of the United States because the agents are not of the requisite level of authority to
speak on behalf of the United States. Sierra Pacific relies on a California Court of Appeal case,
Snider v. Superior Court, 113 Cal. App. 4th 1187 (2003), which found that Rule 2-100 had not
been violated where the employees who had been contacted were not officers, directors and -
managing agents of the organization; had not beenrinterviewed about their own actions and
omissions, but merely their percipient knowledge; and were not “high-ranking executives and
spokespersons™ with the authority to make an admission on behalf of the organization. But
Snider is not persuasive here because that case applied California evidence law, whereas federal

evidence law applies here. See id at *129 {citing California evidence law for the proposition

8
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that ““Evidence of a statement offered against a party is not made inadmissible by the hearsay
rule if (a) The statement was made by a person authorized to make a statement...concerning the
subject matter of the statement.” This has been interpreted in California as only applying to
high-ranking organizational agents who have actual authority to speak on behalf of the
organize{tion.”).

Sierra Pacific also argues that Rule 2-100 does not apply becaﬁse Carman did not
communicate with the agents “abou‘t the subject of the representation.” Dckt. No. 280 at 19.
But, indeed, the very purpose of the contact was to do just that. The Unitea States’ position in
this litigation is that McNeil had nothing to do with the Moonlight Fire and Sierra Pacific was
seeking through the ex parte contacts with ATF agents to establish the opposite. Sierra Pacific
also argues that because the government claims that McNeil was not involved in the cause and
origin of the Moonlight fire Carman’s contact with the ATF agents was therefore not about the
subject of the U.S. Attorney’s ofﬁce’s.representation. According to Sierra Pacific, the agents
“were just two government employees who happeﬁed to have information interesting to Sierra
Pacific.” Id. But obviously, Carman attempted to elicit information from the agents for the
purpose of using it in this litigation. Sierra Pacific sought information regarding McNeil in order
td 'gather evidence to bolster its theory that McNeil set the Moonlight Fire.

Finally, Sierra Pacific rehashes the argument it previously presented to this court and to
Judge Mendez in the context of Schaps’ contact with thc United States Forest Service
employees--that the contact did not violate 2-100 because the “public officer” exception fo the
rule applies. For the reasons laid out in this court’s November 2010 order and Judge Mendez'’s
order, this argument is again rejected here,

The contacts made by Sicrra Pacific’s other retained experts—Bundy and Novak-did not
violate Rule 2-100. At the time Bundy contacted Biddle, Biddle was not a United States
émpioyee, Dekt. No. 297 at 5. See Lott v. United States, 2008 WL 2923437, *1 (N.D. Cal.

2008) (Rule 2-100 is not violated if an attorney contacts a former employee of the opposing
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party). Because Rule 2-100 applies only to attorneys’ direct or indirect communications with
parties, and Sierra Pacific’s counsel did not approve or know of Novak’s contacts with
"Tompkins, the Novak contact does not violate Rule 2-100.* Cf. Midwest Motor Sports v. drctic
Sales, Inc., 347 F.3d 693, 699 (8th Cir. 2002) (holding that t%lc no-contact rule was violated
where th'erc was evidence in the record that an expert’s contacts were not only ratified, but were

directed by counsel).

B. Violation of this Court’s Order

The United States asks that this cowt hold counsel for Sierra Pacific in contempt for
violating the court’s November 16, 2010 order. Dckt. No. 242-1 at 1. As noted above, the court
found that oné of Sierra Pacific’s attorneys had violated Ruie 2-100 by communicating directly
with employees of the United States Forest Service without the consent of the United States’
attorneys. Dckt. No. 92 at 8-12. The court found that Sierra Pacific’s attorney’s purpose in
communicating with the Forest Service employees was to “obtain information and evidence to
use in this litigation against the government.” In addition, the court found that the “public
officer” exception to Rule 2-100 did not apply because the attorney did noft seek redress of a
grievance, but to obtain evidence for this litirgation. Dckt. No. 92 at 8, 10. The order stated,
“under either Cal. Rule 2-100, or the rule that its language tracks, Rule 4.2, the communications
with the employees here were prohibited.” Dckt. No. 92 at 12.

| The court ordered Sicrra Pacific to “identify all federal employees contacted without the
knowledge of couﬁsel for the United States in this matter to date” and barred SPI from “using
information obtained thrdugh such contacts in this litigation.” Id. at 12. The court’s order also
contained the following language: “the court accepts SPI couns¢1’3 representation that counsel |

will ‘identify [their] relationship to Sierra Pacific and involvement in this litigation before

* Sierra Pacific’s attorneys had told ail of their experts and consultants “that they were
not to have any contact with any government employee or agency regarding the Moonhght Fire
without first obtaining permission from counsel.” Dckt. No. 297 at 4.

10
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seeking out and interviewing particular governmenf employees about issuc related to the
Moenlight Fire. [And] . . . to notice the deposition of control group federal employées if and
when [counsel] wish to ask them questions.”” Id. at 12-13.

Sierra Pacific argues that the contacts by Carman, Bundy and Novak do not violate the
order because the order did not explicitly prohibit Sierra Pacific from contacting government
employees to obtain information about the Moonlight Fire. Dckt. 280 at 13. Sierra Pacific
argues that its attorneys complied with the portion of the order that required counsel to identify
their relationship to Sierra Pacific and their involvement in this litigation before seeking out and
interviewing government employees about issuesr related to the Moonlight Fire, because Sierra
Pacific’s attorneys told their experts to do so. Id.

Tt is true that this court’s order, while finding that-Sierra Pacific’s attorney had violated
Rule 2-100 by the prior ex parte contacts, did not contain Ianguagé explicitly prohibiting counsel
from violating the rule again in the future. Such a directive should hardly be necessary. The

undersigned trusted that counsel would conform their conduct to the analysis set out in the

‘ opinion and the opinion issued by Judge Mendez. It appears, regrettably, that such trust may

have been misplaced.
The order stated:
Likewise, the court accepts SPI counsel’s representation that counsel will
‘identify [their] relationship to Sierra Pacific and involvement in this litigation
before seeking out and interviewing particular government employees about
issues related to the Moonlight Fire. [And]. . . to notice the deposition of control
group federal employees if and when [counsel] wish to ask them questions.” Jt.
Stmt. at 33, 42 (quoting August 27, 2010 Warne letter). Counsel must hold

themselves to that representation and must not engage in such contact in the
future.

Dckt. No. 92 at 12-13. This language v&as copied from Sierra Pacific’s brief. Sierra Pacific
argues that the court’s quotation of this language gave tacit approval for Sierra Pacific’s counsel
to engage in unconsented contacts with government employees. Unfortunately, the language
does not include an explicit assﬁrance that Sierra Pacific’s counsel would obtain the consent of

11
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the United States’ counsel before making the contacts described. Obviously, the manifest intent
of the order was that Sierra Pacific’s counsel would do so in order to comply with Rule 2-100.

Now, the court amends its previous order to clearly and unmi’stakably inciude the
following directive: Sierra Pacific’s counsel shall comply with all applicable ethical rules,
inclﬁding, but not limited to, Rule 2-100; and shall ensure that their experts or anyone else acting
on behalf of Sierra Pacific’s counsel do not engage in conduct that, if done by an attorney, would
violate Rule 2-100. |

The United States contends that Sierra Pacific violated this court’s November 16, 2010
order because Carman did not properly identify himself to the two agents. This issue is
problematic. The contrast between Carman’s declaration and the agents’ declarations is striking.
Cf Hidalgo’s Supp. Decl,, Dckt. No. 287-5, at p. 2, para. 3 (declaring that “Carman never
expressly mentioned that [he] was working on a civil defense case ‘across from the Civil side of
the US Attys office in Sacramento’. . .”; “never explained that the lawsuit was brought by the
United States and was being civilly prosecuted by the United States Attorneys” office™; and that
he would not have given Carman information if he had known that Carman was working for a
party against the United States); and Anglin’s Supp. Decl., Dckt. No. 287-4 at 2 (“it was my
understanding based on the comments made by Mr. Carman that the lawsuit involved private
parties and not the United States™) with Carman’s Decl., Dckt, No. 280-1 at 6-7, 9 (declaring that
he told Anglin “instead of working on the side of the federal government, I was working
opposite them. I said I had actually been hired by a law firm that was representing the largest
logging company . . . in California. T told [Anglin] that the Civil Division of the U.S‘. Attorney’s
Office in Sacramento had filed a $1 billion lawsuit” and that he told Hidalgo that he was “was
across from the U.S. Attorney in Sacramento in a civil case involving a big wildland fire and that
I was working for a company that was being sued by the government for $i billion™).

It is very difficult to reconcile these conflicting accounts. If both accounts are to be taken

as true it would appear that Carman attempted to identify himself, but the communication was an
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abject failure. Based on their declarations, the agents who were contacted certainly did not
understand that Carman was working for a company that was being sued by the United States.
Although Carman admits that he did not sPeEiﬁcaliy state that he worked for Sierra Pacific, he
attempted to communicate that he was adverse to the United States in the lit‘igation. If both

accounts are true, Carman’s statements to Anglin and Hidalgo substantially complied with the

November 16 order. See Vertex Distributing, Inc. v. Falcon Foam Plastics, Inc., 689 F.2d 885,

891 (9th Cir. 1982) :(subsfantiaI compliance is a defense to a finding of civil contempt).

Neither did Bundy or Novak’s conduct violate the November 16 order.” As noted abbve,
Biddle was not a United States employee at the time Bundy contacted him, and Novak’s contact
with Tompkins was undertaken without the knowledge or consent of counsel for Sierra Pacific.
Thus, the language in the order prohibiting “counsel” from contacting “employees” does not bar
these contacts. Thus, counsel for Sierra Pacific did not violate the explicit language of the
November 16 order, and the undersigned does not find them in contempt of that order.

C. Remedy for Sierra Pacific’s Second Violation of Rule 2-100 to Date

As explained above, the cowrt finds that Sierra Pacific’s counsel did not directly violate
the expressed language of this-court’s earlier order, Eut did violate Rule 2-100 for the second
tin}e in the course of this litigation.

The proper remedy for violating Rule 2-100 stéms from its purpose. Rule 2-100 was
intended to “preserve the att01'ncy—dlient relationship from an opposing attorney’s intrusion and
interferenice.” HTC Corp. v. Technology Properties Ltd., 715 F. Supp.2d 968, 974 (N.D. Cal.
2010), citing Jackson v. Ingerso!ﬁRand Co., 42 Cal. App. 4th 1163, 1167 (1996). A remedy for
violating Rule 2-100 should not be punitive, because “punishment for violation of the Rules of

Professional Conduct is a matter within the purview of the State Bar, not of a court presiding

5 The undersigned does not rule on whether Bundy’s statements, including that he wanted
information for “a private lawsuit involving a number of parties related to that fire” violated
Judge Mendez’s order in this case.
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over the affected case.” Id. (citing McMillan v. Shadow Ridge at Oak Park Homeowner’s Ass’n,
165 Cal. App. 4th 960, 968 (Cal. Ct. App. 2008)). The proper remedy must rectify “whatever
improper effect the attorney’s misconduct may have had in the case before it.” McMillan, 165
Cal. App. 4th at 968.

- Thus, the proper remedy here is to exclude all evidence or information obtained through
the improper contacts. Flowever, Carman declares that he “learned nothing . . . that related
directly to the Moonlight fire or my investigation of it.” Dckt. No. 280-1 at 12-13. To the extent
that Carman learned anything throuéh the improper contacts, or that he or anyone else used
information that he obtained through these contacts to gain any othér evidence, such evidence
must be excluded.

As this is Sierra Pacific’s second violation of Rule 2-100, it is unclear whether Sierra
Pacific has engaged in additional improper contacts. Sierra Pacific is ordered to disclose its
contacts, as set férth below, '

I, Conclusion

Accordingly, it is hereby ORDERED that:

1. The United States’ motion to hold counsel for Sierra Pacific in contempt is denied.

2. The court finds that counsel for Sierra Pacific have again violated Cal, Rule Prof.
Conduqt 2-100.

3. Within seven days of the date of this order, Sierra Pacific shall identify to counsel for
the United States; all communications its counsel or any of its agents, including expert witnesses,
have had with persons who may have been employed by United States at the time of the

communication without the knowledge of counsel for the United States relating to the Moonlight

Fire or any of the issues presented by this litigation.

4. Any evidence that Carman obtained through his contacts with Anglin and Hidalgo, or
any evidence otherwise stemming from the contacts, shall be excluded at frial.

i
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5. This court’s November 16, 2010 order is amended as foilows. Counsel in this case are
ordered to comply with all applicable ethical rules, including, but not rlimited to, Rule 2-100, and
to ensure that their experts do not engage in conduct that, if done by an attorney, would violate
Rule 2-100. |
DATED: November 18, 2701 L.
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
EASTERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, CIV. NO. 2:09-02445 WBS AC

Plaintiff,

v, ORDER

SIERRA PACIFIC INDUSTRIES, et
al.,

Defendants,

AND ALL RELATED CROSS5-ACTIONS.

Dated: April 17, 2015

The court has today entered an Order denying
defendants’ motions to set aside the judgment and for a temporary
stay of the settlement agreement in this action., There is
accordingly no longer anything pending before this court in this
matter. All claims were dismissed with prejudice on July 18,
2012, and this case has been c¢losed. Plaintiff’s motion to
disqualify defense counsel (Docket No. 613) is therefore DENIED
as moot.

WILLIAM B. SHUBB
UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE
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7 | MEGHAN M. BAKER (Bar No. 243765) Ceirenre. L AAT
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3 § Sacramento, CA 95814-4731 e
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4 | Facsimile: - (016)444-2100 - el . o
bwame@downeybrand.com ' - '
5 mbaker@downeybrand.com
6 | Attorneys for Plaintiffis RONALD J. MALIK, an
individual; VAN DER MEER, LLC, a Califomnia limited
7. 4 Tiability compaiy; MEDCAL, LLC, a California limited
Bability company ' |
8.
9 SUPERIOR COURT OF CALIFORNIA
10 COUNTY OF STANISLAUS
irg .1 . :
s 12 § RONALD L MALIK, an individual; VAN CASENO. 0 )
. "* | DBER MEER, LLC; a Califoria limited m’é 5 227 2
s 13 | liability company; MEDCAL, LLC; a COMPLA - =,
Pl California limited liability company,
14
= %ﬁ Plaintiffs,
i3} s 15
31 :
o A= V.
a7y 16
Eﬁﬁg k= . SPERRY VAN NESS COMMERCIAL
T o 17 & REAL ESTATE ADVISORS; DOES 1-10, e
= inclusive, . .
S-S -
o Q
- _Defendants.
o 3 19
@ D :
g‘g% 20 1. Plaintiff Ronald J, Malik (“Malik"} is an individual who resides in California.
cr'm; o2t 2. Plaintiff Van der Meer, LLC (“Van der Meer"} is a California limited Hability -
: %“‘g " 99 § company with its pp'ncipal place of business in the County of Stanislaus.
??3 T3 3. Plaintiff MedCal, LLC (“MedCal”) is a Cakiformia limited liability company with
o i ’ .
S %‘ . 24 | itsprincipal place of business in the County of Stanislaus.
a7 ' . - . :
“é f:j 25 4, Plaintiffs are informed and believe, and thereon allege, that Defendant Sperry Van
w %} 96 | Ness Commercial Real Estate Advisors (“Sperry Van Ness”) is a corporation with its pﬁhciple.
Rl .
= A 57 1 place of business in Jrvine, California. On information and belief, Sperry Van Ness is doing
g | business in the County of Stanislaus, California,
gss2t . T
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5. The true names and capacities of the Defendants sued herein 2s DOES 1 through
10, inclusive, are unknown to Malik, Van der Meer, and MedCal ,(“Pjaintiffé”) at the time of
filing this Complaint, and therefore Plaintiffs sue said Defendants under such fictitious names,
Plaintiffs will amend this Complaint to insert the true name and caf;ao’ities of the fictitiously

named Defendants when the same Eecome known to PlaintiiTs,

6. At all times mentioned in this Compfaint, each of the Defendants was the ageﬂt,
servani, or employee of each of the other Defendants, and in doing the acts alleged in this
Complaint was acting within the course and scofm of that agency, émplqymcnt or Tepresentation,

with the knowledge, consent, and appfovai of each of the other Defendants.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE
7. The Court has subject nyatter jurisdiction over this action.
&. Venue is proper in this Court as the events giving rise to this action occurred in the

County of Stanislaus, California, the contracts underlying this action were entered into and are to
be performed in the County of Stan.islaus, California, and the real property that is the subject of
the underlying transaciion involved in this action is also situated in the County of Stanislaus.

GENERAL ALLEGATIONS

A, Defendant Sperry Van Ness and.Darrell Sonza

9. Defendmt'Sperry Van Ness is a commercial real estate firm with offices -
worldwide, Onits wcbsxte Sperry Van Ness. represents thatits affiliates have completed more
than $39 billion dollars in sales volume on more than 12 000 fransactions in the last four years

alone. On information and belief, Sperry Van Ness is ranked as one of the most recognized

commercial real estate brands in the United States,

10.  Darrell Souza (“Souza™) is a real estate broker who resides in Modesto, California.
Plaint—iffs are informed and believe, and the;eon allege, that Souza is, and at all times i‘elevant
herein was, the Ménaging Direcior of the M:)desio office of Sperry Van Ness.

11.  Plaintiffs are informed and believed, and thereon allege, that Sperry Van Ness
initially recruited Souza to join its company sometime in or around Janvary 2002. At that time,

however, Souza did not have a valid real estate brokerage license.
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12.  Plaintiffs are informed and believed, and thereon allege, that Souza originally

‘received his brokerage license on or about July 3, 1986. However, on or about October 7, 1997,

the Department of Real Estate (*DRE”) revoked this license. Approximately three years later,

Souza petitioned the DRE to reinstate this license. On or about October 24, 2000, the DRE
denied the petition. Souza a’gain petitioned the DRE to reinstate his license several years }atéf.
On or about January 29, 2003, the DRE finally granted this request.

13. Accordingly, between October 1997 and January 2003, Scuza did not have a valid
real estate brokerage license due to the DRE revocation. Notwithstanding this fact, Sperry Van .
Ness recfm'ted Souza to serve as the Managing Director of the Modesto office, and represented 0

Plainti{fs and to members of the public that Souza met the Sperry Van Ness standard of

“character, competency and certainty.”

14.  Sperry Van Ness has and continues to tout Souza and his real estate acumen. For

example, on its website, Sperry Van Ness represents that:

2 “Darrel] Sonza serves as a senior advisor for Spery Van Ness specializing in land
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development and muitifamily transactions as well as industrial/warehouse, office and
retail sales throughout Califorma,” |

s “Souza also has extensive experience in distressed property sales.”

= “His clients include numerous Fortune 500 financial institutions. With over 29 years
of experience, Souza has completed over $250 million in sale, management and
leasing transactions.”

= “Prior to joining Sperry Van Ness, Souza served as 2 Commercial Associate with *
Prudential Commercial where he earned the Lea&ing Edge Award for four consecutive
years, quaiifying_ in the top five percent of 1,500 offices and ;12,000 associates.”

= “Previously, Souza served as the owner of IBS Financial from 1992 to 1996. He was

" also the owner of Realty World J-bar, Inc. from 1989 to 1996, where for three

consec;uﬁve years he led his office to Realty World System’s Top Commercial Office
out of 2200 office locations and winning Office of the Year in 1992.”

= “Souza has completed several advanced real estate courses from the CCIM institute.”
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15.  Spemry Van Ness has also given Sc.)uza numerous awards for outstanding
achievement in commercial real estate. Plaintiffs ax.’c informed and -believe, and thereon allege,
that Souza received the Sperry Van Ness Partners Circle award in 2004 and 2005. He also
received the Sperry Van Ness Achievers award in 2006 and 2007. Sperry Van Ness represents

that Souza falls within the top 2% of 4l its commercial agents nationwide.

B. Plaintiffs Malik and Van der Meer
16.  Malik is a businessman in Stanislans County, and owns limited liabitity companies

which he uses to purchase and sell real estate. These companies include (but are not limited to)

L Van der Meer and MedCal. -

17. . Onorabout August 9, 2002, Makik formed Van der Meer for the purpose of
buying and selling real ;?;state. Since the Inception of this company, Malik has been its sole
mefnber, and as such “has the exclusive right, power and authority lo manage direct, and control
all of the business and affairs of [Van der Meer] and to transact business on its behalf.”

18.  Malik initially named Larry W. Anderson as the manager of Van der Meer, but
amended the Operating Agreement on or about Ociober 12, 2005, to name Souza as the manager,

Malik entrusted this responsijbility to Souza in large part because of his affiliation with Sperry

" Van Ness, its excellent reputation in the commercial real estate industry, and the awards and

accolades that Sperry Van Ness had bestowed on Souza. .

‘19, The Arlicles of Organization for Van der Meer expressly provide that “[n]o action
of the Manager may be taken witheut the prior written cohsent.of the Member.”
20.  Moreover, the Van der Meer Operating Agreement also expressly provides that

“[tThe Manager shall have no power to take any action under [sic] without the pridr written

- eonsent of the Sole Member.”

21, On or about August 2002, September 2003, and December 2006, Malik, through
Van der Meer, effectuated the purchase of the land described in Exhibit A to the Van der Meer .
Deed of Trust. The parcels listed therein are vested in either Malik or Van der Meer’s names.

The property is located on or around Dale Road, Stoddard Road, and Kiernan Avenue in

Mlodlj:sto, California.
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C. Plaintiff MedCal
22.  Onor about November 19, 2005, Malik formed MedCal for the purpose of buying

and selling real estate. Since jts inception, Malik has been the company’s sole member, and as,
such “has the exelusive right, p.owe:r and authority to manage direct, and control all of the
business and affairs of [MedCal] and to transact business on iis I’)ehalf.” .

23.  Malik named Souza as the manager of MedCal in the Operating Agreement.
Again, Malik entrusted this respongsibility to Souza in large part becausé of his afﬁ]iatién with
Sperry Van Ness, its exceliént reputation in the coﬁmaerciai real estate industry, and the awards
and accolades that Sperry Van Ness had bestowed on Souza, ‘

24.  Like the Van der Meer Operating Agreement, the MedCal Operating Agreerent
also exbressly provides that “[{}he Manager shall have no powar:to take any action without the
prior wriiten consent of the Sole Member.” |

25, On or about November 30, 2007, Malik, through MedCal, effectuated the purchase
.of the land deseribed in Exhibit A to the MedCal Deed of Trust. The parcel listed therein is
vested in ei;he; Malik or MedCal’s name, The property is located on Kjefnan Avenue in
Modegsio, Californta, '

D. Dumas Intématiana], LLC is Formed under a Frandulent Document

Be}l (“Bell Property”) were being foreclosed upon by the Faternal Revenue Service, Souza
recommended that Malik take first position on the loan, which Malik ultimately did. Rather than
execute this fransaction as an individual, Malik wanted to effectuate the deal ﬂﬁough a limitqd'
liability company. Malik suggested that his attorney draft an operating agreement for a new
limited liability company, but Souza represerited that he had é,uthored marry such apreements, and
offered to write this one for Malik, Malik agreed, and 1n approximately October 2003, Souza
wrﬁte the Operating Arrangement for Dumas International, LLC (“Dumas International™), a
Delawaré limited lability company. _

27.  Mualik instructed Souza to draft the Operating Agreemeﬁt. Souza listed himself as-
'the sole membér and manager of Durpas Intemational, and verbally informed Malik that thé

5

35452,

26,  In 2003, Souza learned that certain parcels of Tand owned by Glen and Jeannette
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1 § necessary documents were taken care of and that Dumas International was quaiiﬁcd to do
2 bpsiness in Califormia. Both Maﬁk and Souéa agreed and understood that Dumas Intemational
3 | was set up and funded by Malik, and that its solc purpose was 10 take first position on the loan for
4 | the Bell Properfy for the benefit of Malik. _ l
5 28, Aftér Souza formed Dumas International, Malik, be.]ieving he was the rightful
6 1 owner of Dunas International, issued a check to Souza in the amount of $425,000.00 to effect the
7 | acquisition of the Bells’ promissory note (“Bell Note™). On or about Dece;:nber 10, 2003, the
g 1 lender to Glen and Jeannette Bell assigned its right, title, and interest in the Bell Property to
o | Dumas International. Also on or abbut December 10, 2003, the lender executed an Absolute
10 | Assignment of Deed of Trust to Dumas Intemational on the Bell Property.
11 29,  On or about October 22, 2008, Malik learned for the first time that Souza was
12 aéﬁng in contravention ;)f their agreement, and that Souza was transacting business on behalf of
13 | Dumas International that was not for Malik’s benefit. Malik now believes that Souza intended to
14 | use Dumas Intemational to defraud Malik fr(;m, fhe outset,
15| . Souza Abuses his Authority as Manager of Van der Meer, Dumas International,
: 6‘ and MedCa_l' _
17 30.  Onorabout May 21, 2007, osfenéibly acting in his caiﬁacity as manager of Van der
18 § Meer but without authorization from Malik, Souza executed a Deed of Trust with Assignment.of _
19 Rents (“Van der Meer Deed of Trust™) as trustor in which he named Sperry Van Ness Souza & -
20 | Associates Commercial Real Estate Advisers (“Sperry Van Ness & Associates”) as the
21 || bencficiary. The purported purpose of thc.Van der Meer Deed of Trust was ﬁ) use certain
22 1 property owned by Van der Meer and/or Malik ("Van der Meer Property™) to secure “payment of-
23 1| the sum of $4,000,000.00 with interest thereon according to the terms of a promissory.note or
24 | notes of even date . . . made by Trustor, payable to order of [Sperry Van Ness & Associates] , . .”
25 | Malik and Van der-Meer were unaware of the existence of a 84 million dollar promissory note
26 § made payable to Sperry van Ness & A§sociates, Malik had never executed any such agreement as
27 | the sole mémber of Van der Meer or otherwise, and Souza never produced the original of said
28 || prorm'ss&y note to Malik. ' '
1195821 : 6
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31, Onorabout January 30, 2008, ostensibly acting in his capacity as manager of
MedCal but withogt\authoﬁzation from Malik, Souza executed a Deed of Trust with Assignment
of Rents (“MedCai Deed of Tmét”) as trustor in which he named Sperry Van Ness & Associates
as the beneﬁc%ary. The purported purpose of the MedCal Deed of Trust was to use certaim -
property owned by MedCal and/or Malik (“M_edCal Property™) to secure “payment of the sum of
$4,000,000.00 with interest thereon apg:c;rding to the terms of a promissory nole or notes of even
date : . . made by Trustor, payable to order of {Sperry Van Ness & Assoctates] . ...” Malik and
MedCal are unaware of the existence ofa $4 miljion. d'ollar promiss-ory note made payable to
Sperry Van Ness & Assoeiates, Malik has never executed any such agreement as the sole mermber
of MedCal or otherwise, and Souza has not produced the original or a copy of said promissory
note to Malik.

32, Inlate 2007 and throngh 2008, Malik began negotiations with his lenders to
refimance the loans he has for the Van der Meer Property and MedCal Property. Malik is
informed and believes and thereon alleges that Souza was aware ofrthese negotiations,

33.  Although Souza executed the Van der Meer Deed of Trust on May 21, 2007, and
the MedCal Deed of Trust on Janvary 30, 2008, Souza did not record either deed wntil October 2,
2008, at which time he recorded both.

34, On October 22, 2008, Souza wrote a letter to Malik ("Octobexj 22 Letter™). In his
October 22 Letter, Souza raised numercus issues for the first ime;

= Souza informed Malik that “the Glen Bell IRS lien has been ﬁecided by the
Judge.” .

» Souza represented that Malik owes Sperry Van Ness & Associates approximately
$793,226,00 for real estate commissions, but with cerfain credits relating to the
Bell Property, the total is actually $476,460.00. Souza stated that payment of this
Jbalance would conclude all Dunas Intemational business.

= Souza represented that he wonld no longer accept phone calls from or atfend
meetings with Malik. Souza stated that he had executed all of his duties in
managing Malik’s companies based solely on Malik’s verbal instructions, but that
because he was no longer willing to speak with Malik, he would need all further

instructions in writing,
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35.  Immediately npon receiving the October 22 Letter, Malik removed Souza from his

managenial positions in Van der Meer and MedCal, and amended the relevant operating

agreements accordingly. -

36.  On Qclober 24, 2008, Malik responded through connsel to Souza’s October 22
Letter (;‘October 24 Leiter”) and explaincd that he has no knowledge of agresments entitling
Souza fo rcqeive commissions from Malik. In addition, Malik dcmand;:d a full accounting for
Dumas International and a fuﬂ report and écco;mﬁng as to what ocewred with respect to the
“Glen-Bell IRS lien.”

37.  On orabout Ociober 31, 2008, Souza responded in writing to Malik’s counsel, and
again made a claim for $476,460.00 (“October 31 Letter”). In t-he October 31 Letter, Souza
referred Malik to the Van der Meer Deed of Trust and MedCal Deed of Trust, which he had only
Jjust recorded on October 2 2008. Souza represented that Sperry Van Ness & Associates holds
those deeds as security for money. that Malik purportedly owes to Sperry Van Ness & Associates,
and that Malik authorized him to execute the deeds in a letter dated May 9, 2007 (“May 9 Letter™).

38.  The May 9 Letter in which Ma}il; purportedly authorizes the deeds as security is a‘

fabrication and the substance is entirely false, Malik never signed such a document, and never

. saw that letter before Souza sent it to Malik’s com;sel with the October 31 Letter.

39.  Malik is presently negotiating with a financial institution that is poised to refinance

the Van der Meer Pr(_)perly.. Failure by Malik to successfully refinance that property would result

in the initiation of foreclosure proceedings by the bank which presently holds two notes on the
Van det Meer Properly. The institution presently holding the notes informed Malik in writing,

and by agreement, that it will initiate foreclosure proceedings unless Malik refinances the Van der

_' Meer property immediately. Malik is also reﬁAnancing the MedCal property, the success of which
. is directly tied to his ability to refinance the Van der Meer property. Specifically, as part of his

agreement with the institution presently holding the notes on the Van der Meer Property, he
agreed 1o increase his equity steke in the Yan der Meer Property and Malik is doing so through
use of the -édditional fuinds he obtains by refinancing the MedCal Property. Thus, both properties

must be refinanced immediately.
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40.  Soiza and Sperry Van Ness & Associates claim to the Van der Meer Property and
to the MedCal Property clonded Malik and Van der Meer's title to the Van der Meer Property and
Malik and MedCal's title to the MedCal Property. It also depreciated the properly’s market.
value, and prevented Malik and V.an der Meer and MedCal from enjoying the use of their
property and prennses in the mariner most beneficial to Malik and Van der Meer and MedCal’s
interests as its owner. Moreover, it also prevented Malik and Van der Meer and MedCal from

refinancing the loan for those properties.

. TheLawsuit
41,  On-or about November 10, 2008, Plaintiffs ﬁ]ed a Jawsuit against Souza in

California Superior Court, Stanislaus County, for slander of tille, cancelation of an instrument
consfituting cloud on title to real property, civil extortion, infentional inference with contractval
relations, intentional interfcre;ncé with prospective economic advantage, bfeach of fiduciary duty,
declaratory re]_ief, an accounting, fraﬁd, and breach of contract. On or about Aungust 11, 2009,
Plaintiffs entered imo a Settlement Agreement \vi& Souza.

42.  Onmor about July 15, 2010, Souza was arrested on suspicion of grand theft and
forgery in connection with his dealings with Plaintiffs Malik, Van der Meer and MedCal.

43. Despjte the foregoing events, Sp‘en-y Van Ness continues to represent on its
website that Souza is a qualified affiliate with the “character, competency and certainty” to assist

clients with commercial real estate transitioss.

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION

Negligent Hiring

44, Plaintiffs inéorporate the allegations above as though fully set forth'herein.

45, Plaintiffs are informed and believe, and thereon allege, that Souza is, and at all
timnes relevant herein, was the actual agent, servant, or employee of Defendant, and in doing the
acts alleged in this Complaint, Souza was acting within the course and scope of that agency,
employment or representation. | *

46.  In the altemative, Souza is, and at all times relevant herein, was the ostensible

agent of Defendant becanse Sperry Van Ness intentionally, or by want of ordinary care, caused

1n9ssLE ]
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Plaintiffs to believe that Souza was jts agent-. For example, Defendant allowed Souza to use the
Sperry Van Ness namé, job title and Jogo, advertised Souza on is website, and honored Souza

- with several presﬁgious‘.company awards. Plaintiffs are informed and bei-icve, and thereon allege,
that these actions were designed 10 Jure .commercial real estale custome:ﬁ such as Plaintiffs to use
Spérry Van Ness real estate offices,

47.. Souza is, and at all fimes relevant herein, was incompétent, unfit and/or
unqualified to serve as the Managing Dirsctor of the Modesto office of Sperry Van Ness and fo
serve as a-commercial real estate broker.

48, Piainﬁﬂ’s are informed and believe, and thercon atlege, that Defendant knew or
reasonably should have known that Souza was incompetent, unfit and/or unqualified, but that
Defendant nevertheless recruited and subsequently hired Souza to join its organization.
Aitcrnatiw}e]y, Defendant failed to exercise reasonable care to discover whether Souza was
incompetent, unfit and/or nnqualified prior to hiring him.

49,  Due to his incompetence, unfitness, and/or lack of qualiﬁcationi Sounza caused
Plaintiffs to suffer injury, damage, loss and/or harm in an amount to be proven at trial.
| SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION
Ne,cf;li_gent Supervision
50, Plaintiffs ‘ncorporate the allegations above as though fully set forth herein,
51.  -Plaintiffs are informed and believe, and thereon allege, that Deféndant has, and at
all times relevant herein, had the anthority to supervise and/or monifor the activities of Souza.
52.  Defendant knew, or reasonabiy shoé!d have known, that allowing Souza tb broker,
manage, direct, and/or control real property and related businesses would create an unreasonable
sk of harm 1o persons such as Plaintiffs and/or their ?rqpef(y. Notwithstanding this actual or
impﬁted kriowledge, Defendant permitied Souza to engage in sich activities, and to this day, still
ailows Sousa to éngage in such activities under the auspices of Sperry Van Ness.
53.  Due to his incompetence, unfitness, and/or lack of qualifications, Souza caused

Plaintiffs to suffer injury, damage, loss and/or harm in an amount to be proven at trial.

e
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i THIRD.CAUSE OF ACTION
2. Negligent Refention
3 54.  Plaintiffs incorporate the allcgat.ions' above as though fully set forth herein.
4 55.  Plaintiffs lare informed and believe, and thereon allege, that Defendanﬁ]'c;s‘, and at
5 | all times relevant herein, had the authority to suspend or terminate the employment and/or
6 | agency, whether actual or ostensible, of Souza.
? - 56.  Defendant knew orreasonably shiould have known that Souza was incompetent,
8 | unfit and/or unqué]iﬁed, aﬁd likely to harm to persons such as Plaintiffs and/or their property in
9 | view of the activities of his employment or and/agency.
10 57.  In hght of the foregoing, the circumstances were such that the only reasonable
11 § action is, and at all times relevant herein was, fd} Defendant 10 suspend and/or terminate Sonza.
12 58.  Defendant has failed to suspend and/or fermiinate Souza,
13 59.  Due fo his incompetence, unfitness, and/or lack of qualifications, S(_)uza caused
14 | Plaintiffs to suffer injury, damage, Joss and/or harm in an amount to be proven al trial.
15 | FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION
16 Neg}igentMisrepresentaﬁon
17 © 60.  .Plaintiffs incorporate the allegations above as though filly set forth herein. _
18 6]. ﬁy allowing Souza to use the Sperry Van Ness name, job title and ogo, by
]‘9 advertising Souza on its website, and .by honoring Souza with several prestigious company
- 26 awards, Defepdant represented to Plaintiffs and to the p_ublic that.Souza was a.qualiﬁed,
- 21 | competent, and trustworthy comrmercial real estate agent. Moreover, in its advertising, Defendant
. 522. represented that all its affiliates, including Souza, have the “character, competency and certainty” ‘
‘23 |} to assist clients with comnmercial real estate transitions.
T 24 | 62.  All ofthese representations were false. Defendant knew or reasonably should have
25 i known that Scuza was incompetent, unfit and/or unqualified to serve as the Managing Director of
‘26 the Modesto office of Sperry Van Ness and to serve as a commercial real estate broker,
27} 147 '
28 ¥ 17/
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. representations without any reasonable ground for believing that these representations were trug.

against Souza and nncovered his fraud and gross misconduct during the courseof that lawsuit,

63.  Plaintiffs are informed and believe, and thereon allege, that Defendant knew or

should have known that these representations were false. Altemnatively, Defendant made these

64. Piajmiffs are informed and believe, and thereon aﬂcge, that Defendant made these
representations with- the intent fo induce Plaintiffs to retain Souza and Sperry Van Ness in
connection with commercial real estate transécgions. Iﬁ fact, Plaintiffs retained Souza in Jarge
part becanse of his affiliation with Sperry. Van Ness, its excellent reputation in the commercial
real estate industry, and the awards and accolades that Sperry Van Ness had bestowed on S'ouza.

65.  Plaintiffs were ignorant of the falsity of the representations at the time these -
representations were made by Défendant and at the time Plaintiffs iook' the actions herein alleged.

Plaintiffs did not discover the falsity of these representations until they instituted civil litigation

66.  As a proximate result of these misrepresentations, Plaintiffs have been harmed in

an amount to be proven at irial.

FIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION
Unfair Business Praciices (Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code § 17200)

&7, Plantifs incorporate the allegations above as though fully set forth herein.

68.  Plaintiffs are informed and believe, and thereon allege, that Defendant has engaged
in unfair competition as defined by California Business and Professions Code Sections 17200 et
seqt. in that Defendant has used unfair and/or deceptive business and issued false advertising.

69,  These unfair and/or deceptive business practices, acts and advertising would likely
deceive, and In fact, have deceived members of the public, including Plaintiffs. Plaintiffs have
lost money or property as a resolt of Defendant’s unfail.' competition,

70.  Plaintiffs are entitled to restitution from Defendants, and Defendants should be -

ordered to disgorge any and all profits attributable to the acts of unfair and/or deceptive

competition alleged herein.
/11
11
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PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE Plzintiffs pray for judgment against Defendant as follows:

1, For génera] special and consequential damages on the first, second, third and

fourth causcs of action,

2. Forrestifution and mjlmcnve relief on-the ﬁﬁh cause of acuon

3. For attorney fees and costs to the extent allowed by law,

4. For such other and further relief a; the court deems just and proper.
DATED: October 22, 2010 ‘ DOWNEY BRAND LLP

WL, 2R

WILLIAM R, WARNE-
MEGHAN M. BAKER
Attormey for Plaintiffs
RONALD J. MALIK, VAN DER MEER, LLC;
and MEDCAL, LLC - .
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MICHAEL B. IJAMS (Bar No. 084150) FILED -
CURTIS LEGAL GROUP o
A Professional l.aw Corporation WL 20 P n
1300 K Street, Second Floor (95354) . By
P.O. Box 3030 BRI G ey
Modesto, CA 956353 - ML
(209) 521-1800; (209) 572-3501 FAX g Dt
mijams@curtisledalgroup.com Al e e, w—"":f:ri,‘;
- R LS S A
Attorneys for Lien Holder and Secured
Creditor Premier Valley Bank, a California
banking corporation :
SUPERIOR COURT OF CALIFORNIA
COUNTY OF STANISLAUS
: : d
. r\(-/ k\“ :
. {0
RONALD J. MALIK, an individual; VAN CASE NO. 659272 U A ¢ (e
DER MEER, LLC, A California limited
liability company,; MEDCAL, LLC, a NOTICE OF LIEN

California limited llability company,
Plaintiffs, -
v,
SPERRY VAN NESS INTERNATIONAL

CORPORATION, a Delaware
Corporation, dba SPERRY VAN NESS

‘COMMERCIAL REAL ESTATE

ADVISORS: Does 1-10, inclusive,

Defendants.

TO ALL PARTIES:! N
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that pursuant to various agreements between

plaintiffs above-named and Premier Valley Bank, a California banking corporation,
Premier Valley Bank claims and holds a security interest in and a lien upon all claims by
plaintiffs which are the subject matter of this action, and all proceeds and products

thereof, subject only to any prior lien of plaintiffs’ legal counsel for attorneys fees and

costs.

NOTICE OF LIEN




(%)

Ln

ra

The lien of Premier Valley Bank is based upon modifications and other

accommodations regarding one or more commercial loans and guaranties.

CURHS LEGAL GROUF

A Prbiessibnal Law 071* jon
Dated: July # 2011 : By j// {

L ICHACY B/ [JAM 4
Attornys for Lien Holder and Sec
Valley Bank

L

v U
71:5 Party Premier

NOTIGE OF LIEN
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©1998-2011 EZ-FTing, Inc. {-800-996-2424] - Eoem Sefwors Only

(" - ( -

Case 11-91692 Doc5 Page 1 of 1

$4 (omeiat Rorm 4) 12107 F I} ED : E

United States Bankrupicy Court
Eastern District of California

” - q’ qu Ca-seNo.i”‘j‘“éH Pl PM 3 L8

IN RE;
Van Der Meer, LLe : Chapter - ... .. TS TG
“Debior® EASTERN DIST. OF CA.
DDESTO. CA.

LIST OF CREDITORS HOLDING 20 LARGEST UNSECURED CLAIMS

Following s the list of the debtor's creditors holding ilee 20 [argast unsecured claims, The Hist [s prapared In accordancs with Fed. R, Banke, P. 1007(d) for fillng in this
chapter H [or chapter 9] case. Ths list doos nat Include (1) persons who come willin the definition of “insider” set forth in 1{ US.C. § 10), 01 {2y scoured credliors unless
thevalue of the callaferl is such that the unseeured deficiency places Lho credilor among the holders of the 20 Jargest unsecured claims, Ia minor child is one of the creditors
holding the.20 Jargest unsecueed claiins, stats the child's initials and the name and eddress of the childs parent or gusrdian, such a5 "A.B., a inlnor child, by Johin Do,

guardlan, Do not disclose the child's name. See, 11 U.S,C. §112 and Fed. R. Bankr. 2. 1007(m}.
3 @ &)

mul : @
Nams of credlior and complets mialling address Marno, fefephone number and complete mailing  Mature of claim  Tndicate if clafm Amaunt of
inchiding zip codo address, including 2ip code, of employee, agent (ivade debt, is contingeat, clatm (If
or departmen! of crediior fanillar with cfaim bank loan, unllquidated,- secured &lso
who may bs contacted - government - disputed or stato valoe of
. contragt, ete.) subject 1o setolf security)
Downey Brand LLP : 858,554.00
821 Capltal Mall, 18th Floor
Sacramento, CA 98814
Commoerical Architecture 12,437.00
816 14th Street: . :
_Modesto, CA 95354 . -
. §,287.00

GDR Engineering, Inc,
PO Box 1033

-Cares, CA_95307-1033

DECLARATION UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY ON BEHALT OF A CORPORATION OR PARTNERSHIP

1, [the president o other officer or an suthorized agent of the corporation{or a member or an awlhorized agent of he partnership] named as the debtor
in this case, deefare under penally of perjury that I have read the foregoing list and that it 13 tree and correct to the best of my information and belief,

Dnt;: % (/ Z/ S.ignamre:

Ronald J. Mallk, Scle Mamber

{Prict Nume 12d Tale)
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OFFICE OR THR ' Birgit Fladager
S C A T RNE District Attorney
Stanislans Count '  Chisf Deputy Distdot Aftorueys
832 12" Street, Suilo 300 : Dava Bars
Modesto, Ch 95354 Doug Raynaud
Phore: (209) 525-3550  Fax: (209) 5255918 Annette Rees
. 3 Mazlisa Porrelra

* INVESTIGATION REPORT/SUPPLEMENTAL GMH1

D.A. File No.:
Intakke No.! 79263

Agency Name & No:  IBI329B-SC-3232133

Reportofr . Qerard Hilgart, Criminal Investigator
Violation: 487 PC/18 ULS.C, 1344
Date of Repoxt: August 11,2015

Suspect/Defendant: MALIK, Ronald Joseph

MALIK, Edna Isaac

DANIEL, Janine Shamivan

Page 1
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Intake No.: 794263

Report of: Hilgart
KUFNER, Macus
Viethn: BANK OF AMERICA.
- Synapsis:

T, Investigator Hilgatt, was assigned to conduct further investigation on this matter. To thatend I
worked with the United States Aftorney’s Office and obtained Rederal Grand Jury Subpoenas for

supporting documents from Bank of Ametica and Old Repubfic Title Companies.

Narrailve:

I, served the Federal Grand Jury Subpoena #2013-80-01 upon Bank of America by mail fo the
following; . -

Bank of Ametlca

Legal Order Processing
2001 B, Washingfon Street

Phoenix, AZ 85004

I served the Federal Grand Jury Subpoona #2013-80-02 upon a local branch of Old Republic
Title Company at the below listed address!

O1d Republic Title Company
1140 Scenic Drive, Suifel10
Modesto, CA 95350

In response to the subposnas I received the requested documents which included the Lender File
from Bank of America as well as the Title and Rscrow files fiom Ofd Republic Title velating to
TR RO et st ottty {hat closed on or about 11/02/2012,

The Bank of America documents of padiculat interest include:

o Written correspondence frofn Bank of Ametica to Ronald Malik regarding
alternatives lo foreclosure, namely Short Sale or Deed in Lieu of Foreclosute,

» An Appraisal Report dated 11/13/2007 listing an appraised valus of $1,400,000,
prepared by Son N. Tran, :

Page?2
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Intake No.: 794263 .
Report of: Hilgart

s An Appraisal Report dated 09/04/2012 listing appraised value as $235,000,
prepared by Steven C, Vaughn of Fearrand Appraisal, )

A Broker Price Opinion (BPO) listing value at $629,000, completed by Paul Muto
with PMZ Real Estate,

+ An Appraisal Review dated 0971472012 indicating the previous appraisal, by
Steven Vaughn o 09/04/2012 should not be accepted. This review also mentions
the BPO dated 09/07/2012 listing the value as $629,000. )

"o AnAppraisal report dated 10/04/2012 listing appraised valus of $358,000,
prepared by Lestyn Georgls of West Coast Appraisal services.

« A Residential Listing Agreement dated July 9, 2012 wherein Ronald Matik

~ (Seller) employs New Destiny (Broker) to sell the real property in the City of

, b County of , described as . The
listing price on this agreoment was $350,000. It is signed by Ronald Malik and
lists Michael Anderton with New Destiny Real Estate as Broker and Agent, It
lists au address of for New Destiny and M.

Anderton.

o California Residential Purchase Agreement and Joint Escrow Instructions dated

August 16,2012, This dgcument 1is ine.§ Danief as making an offer to
purchase the property at for $375,000. It reported the
Listing Agent as New Destiny R.B. and the Selling Agentas Aflag
Realty/Financial Services, It wag signed by J aniiie S, Danief as the buyer and
Ronald 7. Malik as the seller. It listed Agnes Besijamin as the agent for the
Selling Firm, Atlas Realty/Financial Services and Michael Anderton as the agent

for the Listing Firm, New Destiny R.E.

There was a Short Sale Addendur, apparently attached, that was dated August
17,2012, Tt was signed by Janine 8. Daniel ag the buyer and Ronald Malik es the

seller.

“There was 4 check drawn on the account of Janine S. Daniel, payable to Hitle ‘
company” for $2000, dated August 16, 2012, The word “deposit” was written on -
the memo line and appeared to be signed by Janine Daniel.

« -Shott Sate Third-Party Authorization Form tisting Michael Anderton, Bioker New
Deatiny as “Designated Representative”. This forms appeats o be signed by )

Ronald Maltk. - :
« California Residential Purchase Agreement and Joint Bsorow Iustructions dated

September 25| ZOIi iistini an offer from Janine S, Daniel to purchaso the
propetty at & for $223,300. Under Finance terms it lists a

$2,000 Initial Deposit, a First Loan in the amount of $178,700 and Balance of
Page3
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Intake No.: 794263
Report of: Hilgart

Purchase Price or Down payment as $42,600, It was signed-by Janine S. Daniel
as Buyer and Ronald Malik as Seller. It listed Aflas Reaity/Finanelal Services as
the Selling Pirm represented by Agues Benjaniln and New Destiny R.E,
represented by Michael Anderton as the Listing Firm, -

s Shoxt Sale Addendum dated September 23, 20 12 signed by Janine S, Dunie} as
Buyer and Ronatd Malik as Seiler. i

o Another copy of what appeats fo be the same check drawn on the account of
Janine S. Daniel, payable to “title company” for $2,000. The date has been
changed to read 09-25-2012, _

o Shott Sale Purchase Contract Addendom dated Seplember 25, 2012, This
document was signed, on both pages, by Ronald Malik as Selfer and Janine
Dantel as Buyer. The docutnent fists 12 conditions that the signing parfies agree

to, a8 part of the Shoxt Sale Contract, including;

“3, The Parlics acknowledge and agree that the Subject Property must be
sold through an ‘Ar’s-Length’ Transaction, ‘Avm’s length” meatis lwo
unvelated parties characterized by a selling price and ofher terms and
conditions that would prevail in a typical real estate sales transaction. No
patty to this confract is a family metmber, related by blood or marriage,
business associate or shares a business inferest with the mortgagor

(Sefiers).” -

%4, The Parties Acknowledge and agree that neither the Buyets nor the
Séllers nor their respective Brokers/Agents have any agrecments wriften
or oral that will permit the Seller or the Seiler’s family membet to remain
in the property as renters or tegain ownetship of said propetty at any time
after the execution of the Shott Sale transaction, This includes if the seller
is retaining  direct or indirect ownership or possessory interest in the
property and/or has a formel or inforinal option to obtain such an inferest

in the futare”

«G. The Patlios acknowledge and agree that none of the parties shall
receive any proceeds from this transaction.”

«10, The Partics ncknowledge and agree that this Short Sale transaction
- will not constitnte appraisal fiaud, flipping, ldentity theft and/or straw

" buying” - -

«11, The Parties acknowledge and agree that any misrepresentation or
deliberate omission of fact that would induce the Bank of America,
Tvestor or a Mottgage Insuret fo agree to the terms of a short payoff that
would not have been approved had all the facts been known, constitutes
Short Sale Fraud and may subject the responsible Party to civil and/or

oriminal lability.”
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«19, The Parties acknowledge and agree that this Addendum together,
with the Sales Contract, shall constitute the entlie and sole agreement
between the Pattics with respect to the Sale of fhe Subject property and
supersede any prior agreements, negotiations, uriderstandings, optional
contracts or other matters, whether oral or weittes, with respect fo the
subject matter hereof, To the extent that any ferm oi condition contained
within the Short Sale Contract is contradictory or Inconsistent with this
Addendum, the Parties agree that this Addendum shall supersede. No
alterations, modifications or watver of any provision hereof shall be valid
unless in writing and signed by Parties, FHA, VA, government agencies,
any investor and/or mortgage holder hereto,” '

o Short Sale Real Estate Licenses Certification dated September 25, 2012, This
document lists Ronald Malik as Selter, Michael Anderton as the Real Estate
Licensee representing Seller, Janine Daniol as Buyer and Agnes Benjamin as the
Real Bstate Licensee reprosenting Buyer, I bears the signature of Michael
Anderton and Agnes Benjanin, It fists eight acknowledgements that the signers
agree fo. OF particular note are the following: '

«3, Licensee representing Selfer acknowledges and agrees that, in his or
her professional opivion, Propetty has been listed on the appropriafe
Multiple Listing Service at a listing price Intended to generate open
market competitive offers to purchase Property and not at an artificialty
low orhigh listing price, Licensee representing Seller fusther
acktiowledges and agrees that his or hey marketing efforts were in fact and

. %in spirit’ aimed toward maximizing the selling price of Propetty from a
ready, willing and able buyer. Liconses has not engaged in any conduct
that restricts or Himits offers fiom buyess, including but not limited to cash
offess, using disparaging language regavding the property or fenants, or
unreasonably restrieting access.”

«5, Licensee acknowledges and agrees that Licenses is not engaging in
appraisal fraud, flipping (3 predatory lending practice whereby a recently
acquired property is resold for a considerable profit with an ariificially
inflated value within a shoxt perfod of time, as defined by the Federal

" Bureau of Investigation), identity theft and/or straw buying, Licensee has
disclosed all agteements or understandings relating to the current sale or
subsequent sale of Property of which Licenses is aware of should be
aware. Licensee is not aware of any oiher agreements or understandings
that call for the subsequent sale of the Properfy within 30 days of the
cuirent sale, the assignment of the property to the Seller or the option for
the Seller to purchase.”

“6, Licensee acknowledges and agress that he or she is not receiving any

compensation, remunexation or benefit from the completion of this
Residential Purchase Agreement other than what has been disclosed in the
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preliminary and certified HUD-1 closing sefflement staterents, Licensce
is not aware of any arrangement or compsnsation or other remuneration to
Sefler, Buyer, Licensees or other lien holders, either directly or indirectly
velated to the purchase agreement, that has been or will be paid outside the
officlal ferms of closing as presented un the purchase contract and the
preliminary and certified HUD-1 closing settlement statements”

“7, Licensee acknowledges and agrees that he or she has disclosed to Bank
of America any known relationship to Buyer or ownership interest in
Buyer’s company, and Licenseo representing Seller further acknowledges

* that he or she has no existing business relationship with Buyer and/ot

Seller other than the purchase of Propetty according to the terms and
conditions of the purchase contract.” _

“g. Licensee acknowledges and agrees that any misrepresentation or
omission of a material fact may subject the responsible party to civil
and/or criminal liability,”

Nanatlve to be continued.

E
Supervisor W ’ .
(=~ . .
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'MALIK, Ednn Isaac

: _ANEL, Janine Shamiran
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- August 12,2012 $2 00 check ivritten by Janme Dame]to Old Republic Titleas a

down payment on i ' e
November 1, 2012 wiré transfer from Jamne Dame[ to Old Republic Tlﬂem the

amount of $223,932.07 carresponding to the purchase price of

o Pasted December 5, 2012, check written by Ronald Malik to J anine Daniel in the
© amount of §2,196, 66
~+ Posted December 5, 2012, check writfen by Ronald Malik to Janine Daniel in the

amount of $15,000. “Lease 1709 writtén on the memo line.

* - Posted February 18, 2013 check written by Ronald Malik to Janme Daniel m the
amount of $17,500.

¢ Posted April 2, 2013, Bank of America cashxer chcck in the amount of $45,000 to

" Janine Daniel. Ronald Malik’s account is with Bank of America.

+ Posted April 2, 2013, Bank of America cashier check in the amount of $5 000 to

I anme Damei

1t appears, affer a summary review of‘ documents that Janme Dame! functloned asa straw buyer

in this transaction and never actually lived at S B Rather Ronald

* and Edna Malik continued fo live there ccmtrary to the Short Sale Purchase Aeement It also
appears that Mr. Malik repaid Ms. Dame[ for, at Ieast 4 large pomon of the purchase price of the

propetty.

' This concludés a summary of the investigation as it stands af this time,

Supeﬂlsof‘. M/ ,
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